LYNDON CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF
August 16, 2021

The Lyndon City Council met in regular session on Monday, August 16, 2021 at 7:00 p.m., at
Lyndon City Hall.

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Steve Morrison called the meeting to order.

a) ROLL CALL: City Clerk called roll of the City Council. Mayor Steve Morrison, and
members Katie Shepard, Kevin Heit, Eric Ramey and Lynn Atchison were present.
Council President Darin Schmitt was absent with notification.

City Staff present: Pat Walsh, City Attorney; Julie Stutzman, City Clerk; Scott
Culley, Maintenance Supervisor; and David Forkenbrock, Chief of Police.

Others Present: Tony Grant, Maguire Iron; Genea Reynolds and Annetta Hurt,
Lyndon Carnegie Library; Charles Hanna, Sharon Hanna and Zacharia Hanna.

2. 2022 BUDGET HEARING: At 7:04 p.m. Atchison made the motion to open the public
hearing for 5 minutes to receive comments from the public in regards the 2022 Budget. Heit
seconded; motion carried.

No comments were made by the public. At 7:09 p.m. Atchison made the motion to close the
public hearing. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

Heit made the motion to approve the 2022 Budget. Atchison seconded; motion carried.
Five copies of the budget certificate page were signed by the governing body.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING:

a) Atchison made the motion to approve the regular meeting minutes of
August 2, 2021 as amended. Ramey seconded; motion carried.

4. CONSENT AGENDA:

a) Approval of Bills: Ramey made the motion to approve the bills as set forth.
Shepard seconded; motion carried.

5. CORRESPONDENCE TO COUNCIL:

e Copy of a letter from citizens requesting the city install sidewalk from Washington
to Jackson Street on 6th Street to be considered. The Council will review the current
sidewalk in place and will be tabled the next meeting agenda. Mayor Morrison also
noted that the sidewalk owner is normally responsible for maintenance of
sidewalks and if the city did put in a sidewalk it would be considered a trail and
maintained by the city.

¢ Request from a citizen who lives at the corner of 11t and Adams to vacate 11th
Street which runs east and west to Jefferson on the south side of his property. He
has a shed that is in disrepair, would like to replace it, however, a portion of the
current structure is in the city’s right-of-way. The City Attorney stated historically



Regular Council Minutes of August 16, 2021
Page 2

the city does not vacate streets and the matter was tabled to allow Council to
review the situation at the location in question.
e July 2021 Edition of the Kansas Government Journal

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

a)  WATER TOWER PAINTING: Tony Grant from Maguire Iron spoke with
Council in regards to the proposed painting and maintenance of the city’s water tower.
He gave a brief overview of the company which has been in business for over 100 years
who designed, build and maintain water towers. The Council received a report
prepared by Mr. Grant in regards to the current condition of the city’s water tower
which he stated is in good condition since being built in 2006 and reviewed the findings
with Council. It was his recommendation, however, to proceed with a paint overcoat
system on the exterior of the tower at this time. Mr. Grant stated the interior of the
tower is in good condition and there are some minor issues in the vapor and liquid zone
that would need to get touched up prior to any further renovation of the interior surface
of the tank. Mr. Grant recommended that could be done in approximately 5 years.

Mr. Grant stated they could assist the city is setting up a contract for service that could
be made to fit the city’s budget as well as the needs of the tank. A contract of service
would define the scope of work with costs and spread the cost over three or more years
depending on the budget available until the contract requirements are met and services
are completed.

Mr. Grant stated that another alternative is to set up a full-service maintenance program.
The program takes the risk and liability of the coating system and tank are removed
from the city and become the responsibility of Maguire Iron. Mr. Grant stated with this
program they would be painting the exterior every 10-12 years, the interior every

15-18 years and renovations would be paid in annual installments. Mr. Grant stated that
the coatings are under full warranty under this program. The upfront renovation costs
would be spread out for the first 5 years and run in the mid $40,000 range. Once the
renovations are done the city would pay a maintenance base fee of $20,000 plus 3%

per year where future inspections, emergency services, upgrading of parts and
renovation costs are included.

Mr. Grant stated that if the city were to proceed with renovation and overcoating of the
exterior and interior surfaces of the water tower, the cost would be approximately
$185,000. If the city were to just proceed with overcoating the exterior and proposed
interior surface touch ups, the cost would be approximately $125,000 - $130,000.

After a lengthy discussion, Council requested more concrete numbers on painting
options as well as the maintenance program as discussed. It was noted that changing
the tower logo would be an extra cost. Council tabled the matter.



Regular Council Minutes of August 16, 2021

Page 3

b)

QUOTES FOR ROAD PLATES: The Maintenance Supervisor provided Council
with a quote from Topeka Foundry for the purchase of a 5 x 10 road plate to cover
open cuts overnight or for extended periods of time for safety reasons. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated the cost of iron continues to rise, quotes he has
obtained have only been good for 5 days at a time and the cost has gone up
approximately $300 since the last time he obtained pricing. Ramey asked the
Maintenance Supervisor if he has obtained any other quotes or contacted Shuff
Steel out of Ottawa. The Maintenance Supervisor stated he had contacted a
company from Manhattan and did not get a response and had not contact the
company in Ottawa. Morrison asked the Maintenance Supervisor to obtain a
couple of more quotes and go with the lowest of the three, but urged the Council to
approve the spending as budgeted. Ramey made the motion to approve the
purchase of the road plate not to exceed $2,400 and will be paid out of the Special
Machinery Fund. Heit seconded; motion carried.

CITY HALL SIGNS/PAINT: The Council were provided proofs for the proposed
new city hall signs from Knox Signs. Ramey made the motion to approve and
proceed with Option #1, removing the ampersand between City Hall and Police
Department at the cost of $450 each. Shepard seconded; motion carried. It was
noted the sign will be a navy blue with white lettering and two signs will be
ordered.

COMMUNITY CENTER TIMELINE: Mayor Morrison stated he has been speaking
with Bruce Boettcher with BG Consultants in regards the proposed community
center and provided information of the proposed location as well as the building
layout/design. After a lengthy discussion in regards to possible drainage issues,
design changes, requirements if a stove was installed, reduction of baseball field
area due to parking lot/building location, entrances to the building and parking, as
well as moving the building farther south, Council tabled the matter.

The City Clerk inquired about the Council’s desired timeline on this project as the
deadline to apply is the end of September. She stated she had spoken with Garret
Nordstrom with Western Consultants and the required Low-Moderate Income
Survey has expired and will need to be redone before being able to apply for the
grant. The City Clerk stated she would speak with Garrett Nordstrom to see if the
LMI can be done in time for the October application. It was consensus of the
Council to move forward if the LMI can be done after speaking with Mr.
Nordstrom and to also contact Bruce Boettcher with BG Consultants to let him
know we are going to move forward.

7. NEW BUSINESS:



Regular Council Minutes of August 16, 2021

Page 4

a)

STORY WALK SIGN AT JONES PARK: Genea Reynolds with the Lyndon Carnegie
Library spoke with Council in regards to putting in a story walk on the trail at Jones
Park. She stated she had applied for a LSTA Grant and was awarded $25,000 and
some of those funds will be used for this project. The story walk consists of 40 signs
with each sign containing one page of a storybook that can be read while walking
that would be changed out every 6 weeks and is asking for permission from the city
to place these at Jones Park on the trail. Annetta Hurt who was also in attendance
stated that as teachers at the school, they use the trail a lot and she could see the kids
taking those walks and reading. She stated that many other cities have done these
and they were successful. Mrs. Hurt stated the family has some memorial funds left
over from when Danny’s mom passed away, that is how this project came about and
they would provide the concrete as well as manpower to install the posts. Ramey
made the motion to approve the placement of the story walk at Jones Park. Heit
seconded; motion carried.

OTTAWA SANITATION CONTRACT: The Council was provided with the current
contract which expires on December 31, 2021 and a copy of the proposed contract
written and submitted by Ottawa Sanitation. Mayor Morrison stated they Ottawa
Sanitation has fashioned the new contract more like their normal contract. The City
Attorney stated he did not see any real issues with it other than there are a couple of
things in the current contract that need to be included with one being not driving on
the edge of the road as it has been an issue in the past.

The Council discussed possibly looking into the City having their own trash service
and not contracting it out. The cost would be an additional employee, trash truck,
poly carts as well as dump fees. The Maintenance Supervisor is to look into getting
prices for a trash truck and trash carts.

After further discussion, Council tabled the matter to give more time to review the
contract and options for city trash service.

STATE EMPLOYEE HEALTH PLAN CONTRACT: The City Clerk provided a copy
of the health plan contract with the State. The current contract expires on December
31, 2021. The proposed contract will be for three years starting January 1, 2022 and
ending December 31, 2024. It was noted that most cities are on this plan and Heit
stated that the more people in the insurance pool, the better the rates. The City
currently pays 95% of employee and 55% of dependent. Employees pay 5% for
employee and 45% for dependents. Atchison made the motion to approve and
authorize the Mayor to sign the contract and to continue with the existing employee
benefits program. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

QUOTES FOR CULVERTS:  The Maintenance Supervisor stated he is need of
culverts and provided a quote from Contech to purchase ten culverts of various
lengths in the amount of $5,695.20. It was noted that $6,000 was budget in the 2021
for stormwater drainage purposes. Heit made the motion to approve to purchase
the culverts from Contech in the amount of $5,695.20 to be paid out of the
Stormwater Fund. Atchison seconded; motion carried.



Regular Council Minutes of August 16, 2021

Page 5

e) REWEWAL OF HAYNES MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR WWTP PUMPS: The

Council received a copy of the annual renewal from Haynes Equipment for
preventative maintenance and inspections of the Gorman-Rupp lift station pumps at
the wastewater treatment headworks plant in the amount of $1,300 per year or
$2,400 for 2 years. Heit made the motion to approve and authorize the Mayor to
sign the contract with the 2-year option in the amount of $2,400.00. Shepard
seconded; motion carried.

8. STAFF REPORTS:

a) CITY CLERK: No report.

b) PUBLIC WORKS: Council received a copy of the maintenance activity report from

August 2 to August 16, 2021.

Atchison asked if the maintenance were liking the Caterpillar machine they have
been trying out and the Maintenance Supervisor stated the boom has more “slop” to
it than the current machine and are not impressed with it. It was also noted the
bushings are not in great shape either for a machine with that less of hours. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated the Case representative is still looking for a good
used backhoe for the department and the Caterpillar will be returned. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated they will continue to look for options for replacement
of the backhoe.

All of the crosswalks have been painted before school starts.

The curb work on Jefferson Street is halfway completed and should be able to
complete the majority of that work this week.

Atchison asked if it is the responsibility of the property owner or the city if a resident
has a drainage issue in front of the property. The Maintenance Supervisor stated the
city cleans and maintains them as they are part of the city’s right-of-way. Atchison
stated that at Simmons’ residence on 6t Street the tube is already lower than it
should be, is silted in and with heavy machinery going in and out of that drive has
caused the tube to back up and now runs over their driveway washing away their
gravel. The Maintenance Supervisor stated he would put it on his list to clean. It
was noted it may be outside the 24-foot easement and is on 6t Street which is a
county road.

Mayor Morrison asked the Maintenance Supervisor if they were still set to meet with
Evergy on Wednesday at 8 a.m. to discuss additional lighting at Jones Park in the
parking lot which he stated they are still scheduled to meet. ~The Maintenance
Supervisor stated they are also going to upgrade the heads with a larger one to see if
that helps with brightening those areas and also have discussed setting a pole with
two lighting heads in the middle.

POLICE: Council received a copy of the officer activity report from August 2, 2021
to August 16, 2021.



Regular Council Minutes of August 16, 2021
Page 6

Chief Forkenbrock stated he has spoken with Highway Patrol in regards to
becoming certified to do VIN inspections. He stated that the Carbondale Police
Department as well as some of the county deputies are certified to do VIN
inspections for residents. Atchison stated that Chief Forkenbrock can be trained and
certified through KHP, can be trained on site at city hall, and would be another
service that the Police Department could provide to residents. Ramey made the
motion to approve Chief Forkenbrock to become certified in VIN inspections. Heit
seconded; motion carried.

9. COUNCIL/MAYOR COMMENTS AND REPORTS:

Atchison stated he still has had no luck obtaining a Connex car for storage, however, has
been able to find a 58-foot semi-trailer that is water tight and does not leak that could be
delivered. The Maintenance Supervisor could take off the truck dollies and sit it on the
ground and put it where the existing ramps are or place it where they would like. Atchison
stated the owner wants $2,000 for it and has not been out to look at it. He stated that he and
the Maintenance Supervisor could go and look at it to see what condition it is in.

Ramey stated there is a lot of concrete debris in the maintenance parking lot and wanted to
know when it will be cleaned up and hauled off. The Maintenance Supervisor stated the
contractor knows it needs to be cleaned up and it will be done by the completion of the
project. It was noted a portion of the contract funds will be held until the debris is cleaned
up and project done to the city’s satisfaction.

Mayor Morrison asked if the color for city hall had been chosen. The City Clerk asked if the
Council seen the swatch of paint on the building as they came in which the Council stated
they had and have a consensus of approval. It was noted that even some residents walking
by provided their opinion and stated they liked the color.

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

11. ADJOURNMENT: Schmitt made the motion to adjourn to Monday, August 16, 2021 at 7:00
p.m. for regular meeting. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

""l:l

Respectfully submitted,
ARY %mcuv LU ¢,
Julie Stutzman, CMC Clty Clerk
‘\\“‘|Ill""'
Approved by the governing body on tQ!!!K!Q-’ 7, 20U, R ‘:; FLYNOS’,’
S 1%
ey W
E 4 %
R SEAL ;
Attest: 2T e
"’ O.;' 'h-u-" ?%s
"1 :QGE cO- ‘\\‘\

AT

pesnntt



